
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 11 08\2.1 2021 11 08 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

          
 

 
This meeting is being held via Zoom Teleconference and will be recorded.  
Meeting details as follows: 

 Click link to join meeting:    https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89259237568         
Meeting ID:                               892 5923 7568             

 
 
COUNCIL 
Mayor Jamie Ross 
Councillor Carolina Clark 
Councillor Bruce Drake 
Councillor John Snell 
Councillor Liisa Wilder 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 Mayor Ross will call the meeting to order. 

2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
2.1 Regular Council Meeting, November 8, 2021 
 Recommendation: 
 That the agenda for the Regular Council Meeting, November 8, 2021 be 

approved as circulated. 

3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
3.1 Regular Council Meeting, October 25, 2021 
 Recommendation: 
 That the minutes from the Regular Council Meeting held October 25, 2021 be 

adopted. 

4. DELEGATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
4.1 Eve Hou, Manager of Policy Development, TransLink, regarding TransLink 2050 
 presentation 
 Recommendation: 
 That the presentation provided by Eve Hou, Manager of Policy Development, 
 TransLink, regarding TransLink 2050, be received for information. 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA 

VIA ZOOM 
November 8, 2021 

7:00 PM 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89259237568


REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  November 8, 2021 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 11 08\2.1 2021 11 08 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

5. REPORTS 
5.1 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated November 8, 2021, regarding 

Draft 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan and Public Consultation 
Recommendation: 
That the report entitled “Draft 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan” from the Financial 
Consultant dated November 8, 2021, be received for information.  
 

5.2  Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, report dated November 8, 2021 
regarding 2022 Council Meeting Schedule 

 Recommendation: 
 That the 2022 Council Meeting Schedule and the Deputy Mayor Schedule be 

approved. 

5.3 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, report dated November 8, 2021, 
regarding Council Procedure Bylaw No. 593, 2021 

 Recommendation: 
 That Council Procedure Bylaw No. 593, 2021 be read a first and second time.     

5.4 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, report dated November 8, 2021, 
regarding Update on the Midden Road Closure 

 Recommendation: 
 That the report dated November 8, 2021, regarding the Update on the Midden 
 Road Closure be received for information.   

5.5 Stewart Novak, Public Works and Emergency Preparedness Coordinator, report 
dated November 8, 2021, regarding Invasive Plant Management 2021 Report - 
Invasive Species Council of Metro Vancouver 
Recommendation: 

 That the report dated November 8, 2021, regarding the “Invasive Plant       
 Management 2021” from the Invasive Species Council of Metro Vancouver be   
 received for information. 

6. REPORTS FROM MAYOR AND PROJECT LEADS 
6.1 Mayor’s Report 

• Zero Waste Conference 
• Homebuilders Association Vancouver - Municipal Dinner    
• Remembrance Day 

6.2 Councillor Drake – Water Committee Recommendations 
 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  November 8, 2021 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 11 08\2.1 2021 11 08 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

7. BYLAWS 
7.1 Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment 

Bylaw No. 590, 2021 
 Recommendation: 
 That “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment 

Bylaw No. 590, 2021”, be read a third time. 

8. CORRESPONDENCE/PROCLAMATIONS 
Recommendation: 

 That correspondence items 8.1 to 8.6 be received. 
ACTION ITEMS 

8.1 Belcarra Barnacle Volunteers, Nora Boekhout, Clive Evans, Bonni Marshall,          
 Michelle Montico, Sandra Reitchel and Isabel Wilson, letter dated October 26, 2021, 
 regarding Request for $1,500.00 Grant for Belcarra Barnacle Society 

Recommendation: 
That the Belcarra Barnacle Society 2021 request for a Grant in the amount of 
$1,500.00 be approved. 

8.2 Cory Heavener, Assistant Deputy Minister & Provincial Director of Child Welfare 
and Renaa Bacy, Provincial Director of Adoption, email dated October 29, 2021, 
regarding the declaration of November 2021 as “Adoption Awareness Month” in 
British Columbia 
Recommendation: 
That November 2021 be declared as “Adoption Awareness Month” in the Village 
of Belcarra. 

 INFORMATION ITEMS 
8.3 Honourable David Eby, Attorney General and Minister Responsible for Housing, 
 letter dated October 26, 2021, regarding UBCM Virtual Meeting  

8.4 Steven Kozuki, Executive Director, Forest Enhancement Society of BC, letter dated 
 October 26, 2021, regarding BC Forestry Workers are Climate Change Heroes (full 
 report available at the Village office) 

8.5 Honourable Josie Osborne, Minister of Municipal Affairs, letter dated October 29, 2021 
 regarding CleanBC Roadmap to 2030   

8.6 Don Reid, Belcarra Resident, letter dated October 30, 2021, regarding “Park” Area on 
 Turtlehead Peninsula (full report available at the Village office)  

 

 



REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  November 8, 2021 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 11 08\2.1 2021 11 08 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

9. NEW BUSINESS 

10. PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD 

11. RESOLUTION TO CLOSE MEETING 
That the November 8, 2021 meeting of Council be closed pursuant to the 
Community Charter Section 90 (1) “A part of a Council meeting may be closed to 
the public if the subject matter being considered relates to or is one or more of 
the following: 
 (k)  negotiations and related discussions respecting the proposed   
       provision of a municipal service that are at their preliminary stages    
       and that, in the view of the council, could reasonably be expected         
       to harm the interests of the municipality if they were held in public.” 

 
12. ADJOURNMENT 
 Recommendation: 
 That the November 8, 2021 Regular Meeting be adjourned. 
 



           
 

 
This meeting was held via Zoom Teleconference and was recorded. 

 

Council in Attendance 
Mayor Jamie Ross 
Councillor Carolina Clark 
Councillor Bruce Drake 
Councillor John Snell  
Councillor Liisa Wilder 
 
Staff in Attendance 
Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator 
Paula Richardson, Municipal Coordinator 

Others in Attendance 
Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant (departed the meeting at 8:04 pm) 

1. CALL TO ORDER  
 Mayor Ross called the meeting to order at 7:03 pm. 

2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
2.1 Regular Council Meeting, October 25, 2021 

Moved by:  Councillor Wilder  
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
 That the agenda for the Regular Council Meeting, October 25, 2021, be approved as 

circulated. 
     CARRIED  

3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES  
7:04 pm Mayor Ross requested that Councillor Snell assume the chair for Item 3.1. 
7:04 pm Deputy Mayor Snell assumed the chair. 
 
 
 
 
 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES 

Via Zoom 
 October 25, 2021 

 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
3.1



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  October 25, 2021 

Page 2 of 7 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 11 08\3.1 2021 10 25 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

3.1 Regular Council Meeting, October 12, 2021 
 Moved by:   Mayor Ross 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
 That the minutes from the Regular Council Meeting held October 12, 2021 be amended 

on page 6, Item 9.1: Conflict of Interest, (amendment in bold) as follows: 
  “…He is a director and a member of a Group Wharf Association…” 

CARRIED 
 Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
 That the minutes from the Regular Council Meeting held October 12, 2021 be  

approved, as amended. 
CARRIED 

7:11 pm Mayor Ross declared a Conflict of Interest and recused himself from the Council 
meeting noting that he was not entitled to participate in the discussion of the matter,    
or to vote on the matter, because of a direct pecuniary interest in the matter. He is        
a director and a member of a Group Wharf Association that is the subject of a legal 
action. 

7:11 pm Deputy Mayor Snell declared a Conflict of Interest with the Bedwell Bay Wharf 
program, insofar that his personal membership in a Group Wharf establishes a 
pecuniary interest in the matter and recused himself from the Council meeting. 

7:11 pm Acting Mayor Drake assumed the chair. 
3.2 Special Council Meeting, October 18, 2021 
 Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 
 That the minutes from the Regular Council Meeting held October 18, 2021, be adopted. 

CARRIED 
7:15 pm Mayor Ross and Councillor Snell returned to the meeting. Mayor Ross assumed 

the chair. 
  

4. DELEGATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
 No Items. 

5. REPORTS 
5.1 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated October 25, 2021, regarding Review 

of Draft 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan 
 K. Bjorgaard outlined the Draft 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan report as follows: 

• Details for Scenarios A, B and C were outlined 
• Strategic Plan Priorities guided the allocation of budgetary resources 
• Projected 2021 Year End Financial Results 
• The status of COVID-19 Restart Grant Funds 

 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  October 25, 2021 

Page 3 of 7 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 11 08\3.1 2021 10 25 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

7:33 pm Mayor Ross called a recess due to a power outage. 
7:39 pm The meeting reconvened. 
  K. Bjorgaard continued to outline the Draft 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan report as 

 follows: 
• The Draft 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan Scenarios & Major Impacts 

o General Operating Fund 
o Water Operating Fund 
o WARD Operating Fund  

• The Canada Community Building Fund (formerly Gas Tax Fund) 
• Taxes and User Rates on Average Value Home 

 K. Bjorgaard noted that there was a correction on page 5 of the report as follows: 
 “Water Operating Fund  

• Projected water usage in line with 2021 & 2019 not the larger increase in water 
 usage that occurred in 2022.”  (2022 should be 2020) 

Council discussed various aspects of the report. The Draft 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan 
report will be brought forward for Public Consultation at the Council meeting scheduled 
for November 8, 2021. 

 Moved by:   Councillor Clark 
 Seconded:   Councillor Wilder 

That the report entitled “Draft 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan” be considered at the Public 
Budget Presentation on November 8, 2021.   

CARRIED 
 Mayor Ross thanked Ken Bjorgaard for the presentation. 
 Ken Bjorgaard departed the meeting at 8:04 pm. 
5.2 Stewart Novak, Public Works and Emergency Preparedness Coordinator, report     
 dated October 25, 2021 regarding UBCM Grant Application for Community Resiliency 
 Investment Funding 
 S. Novak outlined the report. Council asked pertinent questions with regard to the 
 report. The area for prescription development was noted. Discussion ensued.   
 Moved by:   Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by:  Councillor Wilder 
 That Council approve an application for 2022 UBCM Community Resiliency 
 Investment Grant Funding in the amount of $49,836; and 
 That Council confirm its willingness to provide grant management should funding  be 
 approved. 

CARRIED  
 
 
 
 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  October 25, 2021 

Page 4 of 7 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 11 08\3.1 2021 10 25 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

 6. REPORTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPRESENTATIVES 
 Mayor’s Reports 
6.1  Mayors’ Chamber of Commerce Event 

 Mayor Ross attended the Chamber of Commerce Mayors’ BBQ held on October 14, 2021. 
 The event was attended by local area Mayors and was held according to COVID-19 
 protocols. 

 Tri-Cities Prayer Breakfast  
 Mayor Ross and Councillor Wilder attended the Tri-Cities Prayer Breakfast on    
 October 16, 2021.  

 Metro Housing Meeting  
Mayor Ross will attend the Homebuilders Association Vancouver - Municipal Dinner on 
November 3, 2021.  

6.2  Council of Councils  

 Mayor Ross advised that Metro Vancouver held a Council of Councils on            
 October 23, 2021 via Zoom. Mayors, Council members and CAOs attended to receive 
 information on reports from Metro Vancouver Boards.  

6.3  TransLink 2050 
 Mayor Ross advised that TransLink 2050 information is available on the website and 
 that TransLink will be making a presentation at a November Council meeting.  

 Councillor Clark – Metro Vancouver Parks & Traffic Study 
 Councillor Clark advised that pay parking at Belcarra Park and White Pine Beach has 
 been discontinued for the Winter season and will commence in the Spring.   
 Councillor Clark advised that Port Moody and Metro Vancouver are conducting a joint 
 traffic study which should be complete in 2022. She noted appreciation for the work 
 Port Moody has done for traffic management on Bedwell Bay Road. 

The meeting recessed at 8:32 pm and reconvened at 8:40 pm. 
 Council Committees  
 Water Committee 
6.4 Ian Devlin, Chair, Water Committee, letter dated September 26, 2021, regarding 

Continue Review of Technical Brief #2  
 Councillor Drake noted that he had outlined the first 5 recommendations at the Council 

meeting on October 12, 2021. He welcomed Ian Devlin, Water Committee Chair, to the 
meeting. 

 Chair Devlin provided a PowerPoint presentation outlining Technical Brief #2 dated 
September 26, 2021. Topics included: 

• Looking back 
• Looking forward – the ten puzzle pieces 
• Operational & Maintenance Manual for the Water System & the SCADA  



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  October 25, 2021 

Page 5 of 7 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 11 08\3.1 2021 10 25 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

• Letter from Fraser Health, July 19, 2021 
• Belcarra Water System drawings 
• Household water meter readings – analysis of domestic water consumption data 
• Tatlow Tank – 10 year inspection in February 2022 
• Dutchman Creek Tank – inspection to be included in February 2022 inspection 
• Farrer Cove Water Pond 
• Contract with WSP, Engineering Consultant 
• Capital Asset Management Plan 
• Prevention and Mitigation activities 
• In-home sprinkler systems 
• Administrative program 
• Future role of the Water Committee 

 Council asked pertinent questions. Discussion ensued. Councillor Drake noted that he    
 will bring recommendations related to Technical Brief #2 and the future of the Committee   
 to the November 8, 2021 Council meeting. 
 Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
 Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 
 That the Technical Brief #2, dated September 26, 2021, provided by Ian Devlin, Chair, 

Water Committee, be received for information. 
CARRIED 

 Mayor Ross thanked Chair Devlin and the Water Committee for their work and 
Councillor Drake as Council representative. 

 CAO Update 
 L. Dysart provided an update on the following: 

 Asset Management 
 John Weninger, JW Infrastructure Planning, has been approved to manage the Asset 

Management process in the Village. L. Dysart noted that John Weninger has significant 
experience in Asset Management review for various municipalities. 

 Official Community Plan (OCP) 
 A Request for Proposal (RFP) has been posted for Planning Consultants to oversee the 

OCP review and to work with the OCP Committee. There is a revised deadline for 
submissions of November 4, 2021.  

 A notice has been distributed to residents advising of Volunteer positions to sit on the 
OCP Committee. The deadline for applications is November 12, 2021. 

 Water Operator 1 
 Brad Smith, Water Operator 1, has received his certificate as a Chlorine Handler. 

 

 

 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  October 25, 2021 

Page 6 of 7 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 11 08\3.1 2021 10 25 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

7. BYLAWS 
7.1 Village of Belcarra Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes Bylaw No. 589, 2021 
 Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 
 That “Village of Belcarra Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes Bylaw No. 589, 2021” 

be adopted.  
CARRIED 

7.2 Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment Bylaw 
No. 590, 2021 

 Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Snell 
 That Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment Bylaw 

No. 590, 2021, be read a second time. 
CARRIED 

8. CORRESPONDENCE / PROCLAMATIONS 
 Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
 That correspondence items 8.1 to 8.4 be received. 

CARRIED 
ACTION ITEMS 

 No items. 

 INFORMATION ITEMS 
8.1 Honourable Jennifer Whiteside, Minister of Education, letter dated September 27, 2021, 
 regarding the 2021 Premier’s Awards for Excellence in Education  

8.2 Norm Stickelmann, Property Tax Specialist, FortisBC, letter dated October 7, 2021, 
 regarding FortisBC Energy Inc.’s Annual S644 Local Government Act Revenue Reporting 
 2022 Property Tax Payment 

8.3 Lisa Helps, Mayor, City of Victoria, letter dated October 14, 2021, regarding 2021 
 UBCM Convention Resolution regarding Paid Sick Leave for Workers 

8.4 Katherine Huggins, Planner, Vancouver Fraser Port Authority, letter dated                     
 October 20, 2021, regarding Notification – PER No. 21-152, Vancouver Fraser Port 
 Authority – Speed Buoy Installation Lower Indian Arm  

 Council discussed Item 8.4, Vancouver Fraser Port Authority – Speed Buoy Installation      
 Lower Indian Arm. L. Dysart will contact the Water Ski Club to ensure they are aware of     
 this matter. 

 

 

 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  October 25, 2021 

Page 7 of 7 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 11 08\3.1 2021 10 25 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

9. NEW BUSINESS 
 No. items.  

10. PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD 
Rob Begg: Belcarra Resident, queried with regard to private use of public property as a 
revenue stream. 
 
Esmail Shoolestani, Belcarra Resident, raised the matter of Conflict of Interest on the 
Bedwell Bay Wharf Program. 

 L. Dysart provided information with regard to Council members declaring a Conflict of 
Interest. She noted that the matter of the Bedwell Bay Wharf Program resulted in a loss 
of quorum. L. Dysart noted that a declaration of a conflict of interest is a personal 
Council member decision. 

9:38 pm Mayor Ross declared a Conflict of Interest and recused himself from the Council 
meeting noting that he was not entitled to participate in the discussion of the matter,    
or to vote on the matter, because of a direct pecuniary interest in the matter. He is        
a director and a member of a Group Wharf Association that is the subject of a legal 
action. 

9:38 pm Deputy Mayor Snell assumed the chair. 

 9:41 pm Councillor Wilder declared a Conflict of Interest and recused herself from the Council 
 meeting stating:  
 “I am declaring a conflict of interest and recuse myself from any discussion due to a 
 direct or indirect pecuniary interest as I am a member and director of a group wharf 
 association.” 

  Joe Elworthy, Belcarra Resident, queried with regard to the Budget. 

11. ADJOURNMENT 
Moved by:  Councillor Clark 

 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 

 That the October 25, 2021 Regular Meeting be adjourned at 9:50 pm. 

CARRIED   
    

Certified Correct: 
 

 
 

 
 

   

Jamie Ross 
Mayor  

  Lorna Dysart  
Chief Administrative Officer 

 



 
 

 
 

              
COUNCIL REPORT 

   
Date: November 8, 2021   
 
From: Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
 
Subject: Draft 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan 
 

Recommendation  
That the report entitled “Draft 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan” from the Financial Consultant dated November 8, 2021 be 
received for information.  

Purpose 

The purpose of this report is to present the Village of Belcarra’s Draft 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan (see attached) 
(represents Scenario “A”) as well as two other financial scenarios (Scenario “B” and Scenario “C”) to Council and for 
Public Consultation.  The attached Draft 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan or Financial Plan Document provides detailed 
information on the Village’s provisional operating and capital plans for 2022 – 2026 including financial comparisons 
with benchmark communities.  The Financial Plan Document and this report also show 2021 year-end projections 
based on year-to-date results, in comparison to the 2021 budget.  

Background 

This report has been forwarded from the October 25, 2021 Council meeting wherein Council made the 
following motion: 

“That the report entitled “Draft 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan” be considered at the Public Budget Presentation on 
November 8, 2021.”   

After the November 8, 2021 Public Budget presentation, the approved budget schedule calls for the financial 
plan/budget to next be considered at the regular Council meeting on November 22, 2021 at which time Council is 
scheduled to provide final approval of Village’s 2022 – 2026 financial plan (includes 2022 budget) including the 2022 
property tax and user rate increases. As per the budget schedule, the 2022 – 2026 financial plan bylaw and water and 
WARD user rate bylaws are then scheduled to receive 1st and 2nd readings on December 6, 2021.  All public budget 
comments and feedback from the November 8, 2021 meeting will be forwarded to the November 22, 2021 meeting for 
Council’s information and consideration.  

Report 
Scenarios 

The following financial plan scenarios which are included in this report have been developed for public feedback 
purposes:   

Scenario “A” (reflected in attached Appendix “A”) 
• 7% increase in property taxes in 2022 and each year thereafter in the plan to 2026;  
• 10% increase in water user rates in 2022 and each year thereafter in the plan to 2026; and  
• 20% increase in WARD user rates in 2022, 20% increase in WARD user rates in 2023, and 10% increase in 

each year thereafter in the plan to 2026.  

       
 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.1



 
Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
Council Report: Draft 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan 
November 8, 2021 
Page 2 of 9 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 11 08\5.1 2021-11-08 Draft 2022-2026 Financial Plan final.docx 

Scenario “B”  
• 5% increase in property taxes in 2022 and each year thereafter in the plan to 2026;  
• 12% increase in water user rates in 2022 and each year thereafter in the plan to 2026; and  
• 12% increase WARD user rates in 2022 and each year thereafter to 2026.  

     Scenario “C”  
• 10% increase in property taxes in 2022 and each year thereafter in the plan to 2026;  
• 15% increase in water user rates in 2022 and each year thereafter in the plan to 2026; and  
• 15% increase WARD user rates in 2022 and each year thereafter in the plan to 2026.  

Strategic Plan 

From a big picture point of view, Council’s financial plan prioritizes and allocates resources that will result in the 
realization of Council’s strategic priorities. In this regard, Council’s recently adopted strategic priorities, which are 
iterated below, have guided the allocation of budgetary resources.   

Strategic Plan 
Priority List 

1) Asset Management – Financial Plan / Sustainability  
a. Roads Asset Management  
b. Midden Road Discussion  
c. Drainage Plan  
d. Depreciation Management 

2) Consolidated Enhanced Fire Protection  
a. Emergency Preparedness & FireSmart  
b. Monitored Fire Alarms  
c. Water Hook up for Sprinklers – waive water connection application fee of $750.  
d. Water Capacity for firefighting – Reservoir 
e. Tree Bylaw & Report  
f. Application to the Province to request a Local Variance (Sprinklers)  
g. Water Metering 

3) Parking Bylaw Enforcement – Public Information meeting 

4) Official Community Plan – review and update 

5) Group Wharfages & lifting the Moratorium on Marine Ave & Senkler Road  
a. Highway Encroachment Areas 

6) Belcarra Community Pathways & Trails 

Secondary Items 
7) Road to Farrer Cove 

8) Traffic Control a. speed bumps b. speed issues c. Bedwell Bay Road – encroachments & shrubbery 

9) Multi Use Court 

 

 

 



 
Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
Council Report: Draft 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan 
November 8, 2021 
Page 3 of 9 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 11 08\5.1 2021-11-08 Draft 2022-2026 Financial Plan final.docx 

 

Projected 2021 Year-End Financial Results 

The Village’s expected 2021 year-end financial results, in comparison to budget, are shown in the Financial Plan 
Document. As per Council policy, a 2021 budget variance analysis is to be presented to Council for the 3rd quarter 
ending September 30th, 2021. A summary of the 2021 projected year-end results including the expected variances are 
shown in Table 1 below. These estimates have informed the 2022 – 2026 financial plan numbers.   

One of the main contributing factors that will impact the final year-end results for 2021 is the amount of COVID-19 
Restart Grant funds (Grant) that will be utilized to offset 2021 COVID related impacts such as emergency supplies, 
staff time spent on COVID related issues, loss of revenue, etc. A summary of the anticipated uses of these Grant funds 
for 2021 is shown below. Approximately $138,000.00 of grants funds are projected to be used in 2021 and have been 
factored into the 2021 year-end projections, leaving approximately $43,000.00 of Grant funds available of use in 2022. 
 

 
 



 
 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 
 

Draft 2022 - 2026 Financial Plan Scenarios & Major Impacts 

Three 2022 – 2026 financial plan scenarios, with various property tax and user rate increases, are summarized in Table 
2 below. Scenario “A” (the base scenario), which is reflected in the attached Financial Plan Document, provides for 
7% per annum increases in property taxes, 10% per annum increases in water user rates, a 20% increase in WARD 
user rates in 2022, a 20% increase in WARD user rates in 2023, and 10% increases in WARD user rates in each year 
thereafter. The larger increases in WARD user rates in 2022 and 2023 are intended to prevent future WARD operating 
deficits which would need to be funded from the WARD accumulated operating surplus.   

In 2022, for each 1% increase in property taxes additional revenue of $9,100 is generated and for each 1% increase in 
water and WARD user rates, $3,100 and $1,350 respectively, are generated.  The main factors and assumptions 
affecting the Village’s three operating funds are as follows: 

 

General Operating Fund  

• Inflationary increases provided for most expenditure line items 
• Increased support for planning, legal and information technology (IT)  
• Centralized support cost recovery for indirect costs increased from 50% to 75% in 2022, and to 100% in 2023 

and beyond, based on approved policy 
• Dedicated funding for completion of the OCP Review & Update (funded from Community Works Fund) and 

the Asset Management/Long-Term Financial Plan (funded from Community Works Fund & FCM grant) 
projects which both started in 2021 

• Funding for ongoing asset management program from 2022 – 2024 ($30,000 per year) and for an election to 
be held in 2022 ($24,402)  

Water Operating Fund  

• Inflationary increases provided for most expenditure line items 
• Increase in water rates from Metro Vancouver based on 4.1% in 2022, 6.1% in 2023, 10.6% in 2024, 11.7% in 

2025 & 11.5% in 2026 
• Projected water usage in line with 2021 & 2019 not the larger increase in water usage that occurred in 2020.   
• Centralized support cost charges for indirect costs increased from 50% to 75% in 2022 and to 100% in 2023 

and beyond based on approved policy 

WARD Operating Fund  

• Inflationary increases provided for most expenditure line items 
• Centralized support cost charges for indirect costs increased from 50% to 75% in 2022 and to 100% in 2023 

and beyond based on Policy 
• Reduced cost of pick-up and disposal of waste, recyclables and organics based on updated agreement with 

contractor 

 
 
 
 

 



 
Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
Council Report: Draft 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan 
November 8, 2021 
Page 6 of 9 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 11 08\5.1 2021-11-08 Draft 2022-2026 Financial Plan final.docx 

 
      *Numbers are rounded for presentation purposes 



 
Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
Council Report: Draft 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan 
November 8, 2021 
Page 7 of 9 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 11 08\5.1 2021-11-08 Draft 2022-2026 Financial Plan final.docx 

 

Canada Community-Building Fund 

The Government of Canada has renamed the Gas Tax Fund the “Canada Community-Building Fund”, which 
recognizes that the fund is no longer associated with gas tax revenues. Under this program the Village receives 
annual Community Works Fund payments. In a recent communication from the UBCM (follows) they indicated 
the need to spend these monies by 2024. 

“The 10-year Gas Tax Fund is currently set to expire in March, 2024. At this time, there is a 
considerable amount of unspent funds in local government Gas Tax Fund accounts. In the coming 
months, UBCM will be in contact with local governments holding significant amount of Community 
Works Funds to confirm that funds will be utilized for local government capital projects within the 
current timeframe of the program. We expect that there will be requirements for spending Community 
Works Funds within a reasonable timeframe or funds may be re-allocated for future programming.” 

In light of the above, the Village’s Draft 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan allocates Community Works Funds dollars 
for a number of eligible projects. After this spending there is still projected to be approximately $300,000 of left 
over in the Community Works Fund in 2024. Further allocations of the remaining funds will be considered in 
the future to ensure that the Village meets the UBCM requirement.  

 

 

Taxes and User Rates on Average Value Home 

The increases in property taxes, user rates and the parcel tax for an average value home in Belcarra, based on 
the various scenarios, are shown below. This information is provided for discussion purposes.  

 



 
Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
Council Report: Draft 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan 
November 8, 2021 
Page 8 of 9 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 11 08\5.1 2021-11-08 Draft 2022-2026 Financial Plan final.docx 

 

 
 
 
 



 
Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
Council Report: Draft 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan 
November 8, 2021 
Page 9 of 9 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 11 08\5.1 2021-11-08 Draft 2022-2026 Financial Plan final.docx 

 

Attachment: 

• Appendix “A” - Draft 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan (or Financial Plan Document) 
        
 
 



 

                                                                                                                                        

 

Village of Belcarra 
Appendix “A” - Draft 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan  

(Presented October 25, 2021) 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
Appendix A



 

 1 
 

Table of Contents     
  

   
Summary ............................................................................................................................................................................................... 2 

Introduction & Overview ........................................................................................................................................................................ 3 

General Operating Fund ...................................................................................................................................................................................... 3 

Water Operating Fund ......................................................................................................................................................................................... 6 

Waste & Recycle Depot (WARD) Operating Fund ................................................................................................................................................. 7 

Capital Plan ......................................................................................................................................................................................................... 8 

Reserves & Surpluses .......................................................................................................................................................................................... 9 

Property Taxes & User Fees ............................................................................................................................................................................... 10 

General Operating Fund Details ........................................................................................................................................................... 11 

Water Operating Fund Details .............................................................................................................................................................. 15 

Water Fund Debt ................................................................................................................................................................................. 18 

Waste & Recycle Depot (WARD) Operating Fund Details ...................................................................................................................... 19 

5 - Year Capital Plan Details ................................................................................................................................................................. 21 

Projected Reserve & Surplus Balances .................................................................................................................................................. 24 

Comparative Benchmarks .................................................................................................................................................................... 25 

 
 
 
 



 

 2 
 

Summary 
The Draft 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan provides for 7% per annum increases in property taxes, 10% per annum increases in water user rates, a 20% increase in WARD 
user rates in each of 2022 and 2023, and 10% increases in WARD user rates in each year thereafter. The planned rate increases, the regular operating revenues 
and expenses and the resulting reserve/surplus transfers, together with the planned capital expenditures under the plan are as follows: 

 
   *Numbers are rounded for presentation purposes.  



 

 3 
 

Introduction & Overview 
Staff and the Village’s Financial Consultant are pleased to present the 
Village’s Provisional 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan which includes the Draft 2022 
Budget. This document provides summary and detailed financial information 
for the Village three (3) operating funds (the General Operating Fund, the 
Water Operating Fund and the Waste & Recycle Depot Operating Fund), and 
for the Village’s 5-year capital spending program and its various reserve and 
surplus accounts. In addition, information is provided on key benchmark data 
with other comparable jurisdictions.    

The financial information presented purposely differentiates between regular 
and extraordinary (includes one-time, non-reoccurring and/ or designated 
items) operating expenses and revenues so that a clearer picture of the true 
cost of funding core operations is visible.   

General Operating Fund 

The Draft 2022 General Operating Fund Budget includes a property tax 
increase of 7% with approximately $428,000 being available for transfers to 
reserves and surplus accounts ($489,000 including Community Works Funds).  
The 2022 Draft Operating Fund Budget provides for the completion of two 
major projects which started in 2021, the OCP Review & Update and the Asset 
Management Plan/Long-Term Financial Plan, as well as funding for an 
ongoing asset management program and an election that will be held in 2022.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 4 
 

 

 

 

 



 

 5 
 

 

 



 

 6 
 

Water Operating Fund 
The Draft 2022 Water Operating Fund Budget includes a water rate increase 
of 10%, with approximately $51,000 being available for transfer to reserves 
and surplus accounts in 2022.   

 

 

 

 

 



 

 7 
 

Waste & Recycle Depot (WARD) Operating Fund 

The Draft 2022 WARD Operating Fund Budget includes a provisional rate 
increase of 20% with approximately $7,000 being available for transfer to 
reserves and surplus accounts in 2022.   

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 8 
 

  

Capital Plan 

A detailed 5-year capital plan is provided in this document of which a 
summary follows.  

The draft 5-year capital plan in WARD provides for the replacement of 
essential equipment such as the compactor and container, and for repaving 
of the tarmac area. The draft 5-year capital plan in Water focuses on a 
universal water meter program, new meter for leak detection, upgrade of the 
SCADA system and engineering for an upgraded water system.  

The major capital projects in the General Fund include generators, 
replacement of the shelter for public works equipment, security systems, 
vehicle replacements, completion of a multi-use path, road rehabilitation and 
improvements (for the non-MRN and MRN road), upkeep of drainage systems 
and trail improvements.  

The draft capital plan over the 5 years (2022 – 2026) totals approximately 
$2.2 million.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 9 
 

Reserves & Surpluses 

The Village’s reserve and surplus balances are projected to grow from about 
$2.1 million to $4.2 million over the next 5 years (see graph below) based on 
the Draft 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan including the planned reserve and 
surplus transfers and capital spending. These projections are very much 
dependent upon future capital spending levels. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 10 
 

 

Property Taxes & User Fees 
 

The Village’s Draft 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan provides for 7% per annum 
increases in property taxes, 10% per annum increases in water user rates, a 
20% increase in WARD user rates in each of 2022 and 2023, and 10% increases 
in WARD user rates in each year thereafter. The larger increases in WARD 
user rates in 2022 and 2023 are needed in order to prevent future WARD 
operating deficits and the associated draw down of the WARD accumulated 
operating surplus to fund which funds deficits.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 11 
 

 

General Operating Fund Details 

2022 Draft General Operating Fund Budget Highlights 2023 – 2026 Draft General Operating Fund Financial Plan Highlights 

 Provisional general property tax increase of 7%. 
 $1.54 million of regular operating revenues and $1.11 million of regular 

operating expenses (includes $142,000 of revenue and expense for Major 
Road Network). 

 Allocation of centralized support costs to the Major Road Network (MRN) 
and the Water and WARD operating funds at 75% phased in level for 
2022.  

 Special project funding for OCP Review & Update (funded from 
Community Works Fund) and Asset Management/Long-Term Financial 
Plan (funded from Community Works Fund & FCM grant). 

 Funding for ongoing asset management program ($30,000) and for an 
election to be held in 2022 ($24,402).  

 $485,000 of funds budgeted for transfer to reserves and surplus (includes 
$60,000 to the Community Works Fund). 
 

 

 Ongoing provisional annual general property increases of 7%.  
 Allocation of centralized support costs to the Major Road Network (MRN) 

and the Water and WARD operating funds at 100% phased in (phase in 
period ends in 2023).  

 Funding for asset management program at $30,000 in both 2023 and 
2024. 

 Reserve and surplus transfers increasing each year to the $860,000 level 
in 2026 (includes $63,000 to the Community Works Gas Tax Fund). 
 

 In 2022 every 1% increase in General Property Taxes will generate $9,100 of additional revenue 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 12 
 

 

 

 



 

 13 
 

 



 

 14 
 

 



 

 15 
 

 

Water Operating Fund Details 

2022 Draft Water Operating Fund Budget Highlights 2023 – 2026 Draft Water Operating Fund Financial Plan Highlights 

 10% increase in water user rates for those connected to the water system 
and for those not connected to the water system. 

 $349,000 of regular operating revenues and $298,000 of regular 
operating expenses. 

 Allocation of centralized support costs charged to Water operating fund 
at 75% phased in level for 2021.  

 Budgeted decrease in water usage (in comparison to 2020) and budgeted 
cost increase (4.1%) for the purchase of water from Metro Vancouver.  

 $51,000 of contributions or transfers to reserve and surplus accounts.  
 

 Ongoing 10% increases in water user rates. 
 Increased transfers to water reserves and surplus after full allocation of 

centralized support costs in 2022 (now at 100% level).  
 Increase in water rates from Metro Vancouver based on 6.1% in 2023, 

10.6% in 2024, 11.7% in 2025 & 11.5% in 2026. 
 $107,000 available for transfer to reserve and surplus in 2026.  

 
 

 

 In 2022 every 1% increase in Water User Rates would generate $3,100 of additional revenue 



 

 16 
 

 



 

 17 
 

 

 

 

 



 

 18 
 

 

 

Water Fund Debt 
 

 



 

 19 
 

 

 Waste & Recycle Depot (WARD) Operating Fund Details  
 

2022 Draft WARD Operating Fund Budget Highlights 2023 – 2026 Draft WARD Operating Fund Financial Plan Highlights 

 Increase in WARD user rates of 20% to prevent deficit. 
 $165,000 of regular operating revenues and $158,000 of regular 

operating expenses. 
 Allocation of centralized support costs charged to WARD operating fund 

at 75% phased in level for 2022.  
 Reduction in budgeted cost of collection, hauling and disposal of waste, 

recyclables and organics based on new agreement with the contractor.  
 Contributions to reserves & surplus account of $7,000 in 2022. 

 

 WARD user rate increase of 20% in 2023 and 10% per annum each year 
thereafter. 

 Full allocation of centralized support costs in 2022 (now at 100% level) 
and each year thereafter.  

 $73,000 available for transfer to reserves & surplus in 2026. 

In 2022 every 1% increase in WARD User Rates would generate $1,350 of additional revenue 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 20 
 

 



 

 21 
 

5 - Year Capital Plan Details 

2022 Capital Highlights 2023 – 2026 Capital Highlights 

 $642,000 of capital projects planned for. 
 $100,000 for Marine Ave - Mill & Fill.  
 $143,000 to complete the Multi-Use Path (75% funded by TransLink) 
 $40,000 to replace a Bedwell Bay Road Culvert 
 $30,000 to start universal water metering project. 
 $30,000 for New Water Meter for Leak Detection (Tatlow). 
 $20,000 for water system engineering. 
 $52,000 for SCADA. 
 $50,000 for Bedwell Bay Road Safety Barriers (Grant Application 

approved by TransLink for 75% funding). 

 

 Approximately 1.5 million of capital spending for 2023 – 2026 with 
continuation of universal water metering, SCADA and water engineering 
projects, as well as major vehicle replacements, replacement of the public 
works vehicle shelter, retaining wall replacement and road improvements.   

 

 

 



 

 22 
 

 



 

 23 
 

 



 

 24 
 

Projected Reserve & Surplus Balances 

 



 

 25 
 

 

Comparative Benchmarks 
The comparisons or benchmarks presented here are for discussion purposes 
during budget deliberations. When viewing the data, it is important to 
remember that each community is unique in terms of its assessment base, its 
geography, its budgetary demands, etc. In other words, no two (2) 
communities are exacting alike. 

When looking at comparisons from general context certain trends begin to 
emerge which are worthy of thought and discussion. The following 
communities have been chosen as comparators to Belcarra.  

• Anmore 
• Bowen Island 
• Lions Bay 

 

This statistical data is published by the Ministry of Community, Sport and 
Cultural Development (Ministry) annually and is referred to as “Local 
Government Statistics”. The value of a representative house in Belcarra for 
2021, was $1,366,808; however, this value is artificially low as it is impacted 
by water lot values on certain properties. The true value of a representative 
home in Belcarra for 2021 is $1,994,671 based on negating the impact of the 
water lots. This updated value and the associated tax impact of this value has 
been used in the tax comparisons shown in these benchmark comparisons.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
BC Local Government Statistics - 2020 Year-End 

 

 

 

   

 



 

 26 
 

 

 
BC Local Government Statistics - 2020 Year-End 

BC Local Government Statistics - 2020 Year-End 
 

 
BC Local Government Statistics - 2020 Year-End 

 



 

 27 
 

 

 
BC Local Government Statistics - 2021 with house value/taxes in Belcarra increased based on 
impact of water lots 
 

 
BC Local Government Statistics - 2021 with house value/taxes in Belcarra increased based on 
impact of water lots 

 

 

 
BC Local Government Statistics - 2021 with house value/taxes in Belcarra increased based on 
impact of water lots 
 



 

 28 
 

 

 

 
BC Local Government Statistics - 2021 with house value/taxes in Belcarra increased based on 
impact of water lots 
 

 

 

 



J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 11 08\5.2 2021 11 08 Council Meeting Schedule 2022.docx 
 

  
COUNCIL REPORT 

   
Date: November 8, 2021  
 
From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
Subject: 2022 Council Meeting Schedule   
 
 
Recommendation 
 
That the 2022 Council Meeting Schedule and the Deputy Mayor Schedule be approved. 
 
Purpose 
 
To present the 2022 Council Meeting Schedule for approval. 
 
Background 
 
The Council Meeting Schedule is set annually and posted on the Belcarra Municipal Website and 
the official Notice Board.  The meeting schedule includes the following information: 

• All Regular Council Meetings; 
• The Deputy Mayor Schedule; 
• Municipal Election & Inaugural Meeting; 
• Major Conferences 

 
In the proposed 2022 Council Meeting Schedule, Regular Council Meetings are held as per the 
attached calendar.   

• In August, no meetings are held; 
• In December, one meeting is held.  

 
Attachment 

(1)  2022 Council Meeting Calendar   
 
 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.2



J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 11 08\5.2 Attachment 2022 Council Meeting CALENDAR.docx 

2022 COUNCIL MEETING CALENDAR 
 

January 
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

      
   

  1 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 

30 31 
 

        
 

February 
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa   

1 2 3 4 5 

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 

27 28 
     

              
 

March 
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 
    

 
1 2 3 4 5 

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 

27 28 29 30 31 
  

 
            

 

Council Meetings: 
Denoted in BLUE 
CAO Forum  
To be determined 
 
SD 43 Spring Break: 
March 14 – March 25 
Volunteer Appreciation 
April 28 (Tentative) 

 
LMLGA (Whistler) May 4-6 
 
LGMA (Penticton) 
June 21-23 
Belcarra Day  
June 26 (Tentative) 
 
UBCM Annual Convention 
(Whistler)  
September 12-16 
 
Election 2022 
Election Day – October 15 
Inaugural Mtg – Nov. 7 

     
Holidays: 
Denoted in RED 
Jan 1: New Year’s Day 
Feb 21: Family Day 
Apr 15: Good Friday 
Apr 18: Easter Monday 
May 23: Victoria Day 
Jul 1: Canada Day 
Aug 1: BC Day 
Sep 5: Labour Day 
Sep 30: Truth and        

Reconciliation Day 
Oct 10: Thanksgiving Day 
Nov 11: Remembrance Day 
Dec 25: Christmas Day 
Dec 26: Boxing Day 
Dec 27: In lieu of Christmas 

Day 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

April 
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 
        1 2 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 
 

            
 

May 
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

       

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 

22 23 24 25 26 27 28 

29 30 31     
 

June 
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

      1 2 3 4 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 

26 27 28 29 30   
 

            
 

 

July 
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 
        1 2 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 

31 
 

          
 

August 
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

 1 2 3 4 5 6 

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 

28 29 30 31    

       
 

September 
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 
       1 2 3 

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 

25 26 27 28 29 30  
  

          
 

 

October 
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

      1 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 

30 31           

  

November 
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 
   1 2 3 4 5 

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 

27 28 29 30    

              
 

December 
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 
       1 2 3 

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 

25 26 27 28 29 30 31 
   

        
 

 

 

Deputy Mayor Appointments 2022 
December 2021 up to & including February 2022   Councillor Liisa Wilder 
March up to & including May 2022    Councillor Carolina Clark 
June up to & including August 2022                     Councillor Bruce Drake 
September up to & including October 14, 2022    Councillor John Snell 

 

prichardson
Typewritten Text



J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 11 08\5.3 2021 11 08 L. Dysart - Council 
Procedure Bylaw 593, 2021.doc 

  
COUNCIL REPORT 

  
Date: November 8, 2021 
 
From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer  
 
Subject: Council Procedure Bylaw No. 593, 2021 
 
 
Recommendation  
That Council Procedure Bylaw No. 593, 2021 be read a first and second time.     
 
Purpose 
The purpose of this report is to bring forward a new Council Procedure Bylaw which will provide 
the option to conduct Council meeting and Committee meetings in person or via electronic 
participation.   
Background 
On March 13, 2020, a public state of emergency was declared to support the BC province wide 
response to the Covid-19 pandemic.  During that time, the Province issued several orders to assist 
local governments to continue their operations, including Order M192, issued on June 17, 2020, 
empowering local governments to conduct meetings via electronic participation.  When Covid-19 
case rates began to decline, the Province ended the state of emergency effective June 30, 2021 and 
allowed the municipal governments to continue to use Order M192. This order has now expired, 
and municipal governments are required to amend their procedure bylaws. The Province also 
informed local governments that amendments will be made to the Community Charter to allow 
local governments to continue to hold electronic meetings should they wish to do so, which would 
require amendments to Council Procedure Bylaws.   
Belcarra Council Procedure Bylaw No. 356, 2004 has received 6 amendments.  It was deemed 
appropriate for staff to bring forward a new Council Procedure Bylaw to cover the way in which 
Council meetings may now be conducted.  The only changes to Council Procedure Bylaw No. 593, 
2021, is to provide for electronic and / or hybrid participation at Council meetings.  
During the Covid-19 Pandemic, work was undertaken to have new electronic equipment installed 
in the Village Hall.  The new equipment empowers Council and staff to be able to conduct hybrid 
Council meetings.  That means that Council members, certain staff, residents, and consultants, will 
be able to attend Council or Committee meetings virtually or in person.   
When it will be safe to hold in person Council meetings, use of the new electronic equipment will 
commence.  At that time, consideration of an additional staff member to assist with the use of the 
electronic equipment will be determined.   
It is recommended that Council give three readings to the Council Procedure Bylaw in this meeting 
and / or provide for adoption, as it is important that the Village complies with the Provincial 
legislation.   

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.3



VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
COUNCIL PROCEDURE  

BYLAW NO. 593, 2021 
 

                                                                                                                                      
 

A Bylaw to Regulate the Procedure at Council and Committee Meetings  
for the Village of Belcarra 

WHEREAS Council is required to enact a Procedure Bylaw, pursuant to the Community Charter, 
to establish the general procedures to be followed by Council and Council Committees in 
conducting their business; 

NOW THEREFORE The Council of the Village of Belcarra, in open meeting assembled, enacts 
as follows: 
 
PART 1 – INTRODUCTION 
 
Title 
 
1. This Bylaw may be cited as the “COUNCIL PROCEDURE BYLAW NO. 593, 2021”. 
 
Definitions 
 
2. In this Bylaw: 
 

Agenda means the list of items and order of business for a meeting. 
  
Chairperson means the person presiding at a meeting of a select committee of 

Council. 
  

Committee  means a standing, select, or other committee of Council. 
 
Corporate Officer means the Chief Administrative Officer for the Village or the  
   person appointed by Council to act in this position. 
 
Council  means the Council of the Village of Belcarra. 

Deputy Mayor means the member appointed or selected by Council to act in the 
absence of the Mayor. 

 
Electronic Meeting means a meeting where all members participate electronically. 
 
Electronic Attendee means a person who is attending an electronic or hybrid  
   meeting via electronic means.  

Electronic  means the electronic participation of one or more attendees at an 
Participation  in person meeting. 
   
Hybrid Meeting means a meeting where some Council members and the Public are     
   attending in person and some Council members and the Public are     
   attending electronically. 
 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
Attachment



Village of Belcarra Council Procedure Bylaw No. 593, 2021 2 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 11 08\5.3 Attachment Bylaw 593, 2021 Council Procedure.doc 

In Person Meeting means a meeting where all attendees physically attend a meeting. 
 
Mayor   means the Mayor of the Village of Belcarra. 
 
Member  means a member of Council.  
 
Meeting Schedule means the annually published schedule of regular Council meetings. 
 
Point of Order means raising of a question by a Council member to call attention to           
   any departure from procedures established in the Procedure Bylaw.  

 
Public Notice   means the Notice Board at the Village Hall, and optionally, the  
Posting Place   Village website.  
 
Quorum  means a majority of members of Council. 
 
Robert’s Rules means Robert’s Rules of Order Newly Revised, current edition.     
of Order  Robert’s Rules of order shall be the resource to cover Council  
   Procedure not covered in the procedure bylaw. 

Unanimous  means an informal way of taking a vote, used only for routine and 
Consent  non-controversial decisions, usually of a procedural nature.   

  
Village means the Village of Belcarra. 
 
Village Hall  means Belcarra Village Hall located at 4084 Bedwell Bay Road, 

Belcarra BC V3H 4P8. 
 

 Village Website means the information resource found at an internet address  
   provided by the Village. 

 
PART 2 – COUNCIL MEETINGS 
 
Inaugural Meeting   
 
3. The first Council meeting following a general local election must be held on the first 

Monday of November in the year of the election.  

Time and location of meetings   
 
4. (1) All Council meetings must take place within Village Hall, or electronically, or as a 

hybrid meeting, except when Council resolves to hold meetings elsewhere. 
 

(2) Council shall establish annually by resolution a schedule of Council meetings: 
(a) beginning at 7:00 pm; 

 
(b) concluding at 11:00 pm on the day scheduled for the meeting unless 

Council resolves to proceed beyond that time. 
 

(3) Closed Council meetings will normally be held at 5:00 pm, prior to a Regular 
Council meeting as per 4.(1) above, and may be held in person, electronically or 
by hybrid meeting, or a meeting may be Closed by Council resolution. 
   

 
 



Village of Belcarra Council Procedure Bylaw No. 593, 2021 3 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 11 08\5.3 Attachment Bylaw 593, 2021 Council Procedure.doc 

Notice of Council Meetings   
 
5. (1) Council must prepare annually on or before December 31, a schedule of the dates, 

times and places of regular Council meetings and must make the schedule 
available to the public by posting it at the Public Notice Posting Place, and 
optionally, the Village website. 

 
 (2) Council must give notice annually on or before December 31 of the time and 

duration that the schedule of regular Council meetings will be available. 
 
 (3) Where revisions are necessary to the annual schedule of regular Council meetings, 

the Corporate Officer must, as soon as possible, post a notice at the Public Notice 
Posting Place, and optionally, the Village website, indicating any revisions to the 
date, time and place or the cancellation of a regular Council meeting. 

 
 (4) Advance public notice, at the Public Notice Posting Place, and optionally, the 

Village website, will be given for the way in which the Council electronic or 
hybrid meetings will be conducted. Notice will include the place where the public 
may attend to hear, or watch and hear, or attend in person, where requirements for 
in person attendance, if any, are met.  

 
Electronic / Hybrid Meetings   
 
6. (1) Subject to the Community Charter  
  (a) Council meetings may be conducted by electronic means. 

(b) The Chair and Corporate Officer will determine if a council meeting will 
be held electronically; in person or in a hybrid manner.   

(c) a member of Council or a Council committee, who is unable to attend a 
Council meeting or a Council committee meeting in person, may 
participate in the meeting by means of electronic or other communication 
facilities. 

 
(d) Council meetings may be held in person, electronically or as a hybrid  

 meeting. The Mayor / Chair, one Council member and the Corporate 
Officer must be in attendance in the Village Hall. In extenuating 
circumstances, the Mayor and the Corporate Officer may attend the Council 
meetings electronically. 
 

(e) Council members attending an electronic or hybrid meeting must, at all 
times, be visible on camera. 

 
(f) A recess may be provided at the request of Council or staff. 

 
(g) A Council member who wishes to attend an in person meeting via electronic 

means must provide notice to the Mayor / Chair and Corporate Officer of 
their intent no less than 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

 
 
 



Village of Belcarra Council Procedure Bylaw No. 593, 2021 4 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 11 08\5.3 Attachment Bylaw 593, 2021 Council Procedure.doc 

 
(h) Priority for electronic participation will be granted, in order that the request 

is received, based on notification date and time, and will not exceed the 
electronic participation limits established in this section. Requests for an 
accommodation process will be considered. 
 

(i) A Council member will not exercise the option to participate electronically 
in an in person meeting more than ten (10) times per calendar year without 
the general consent or approval of Council. 

 
(j) The name of electronic participants will be noted in the meeting minutes as 

having participated electronically. 
 

(k) Electronic participants who lose connectivity with the electronic platform 
for more than five (5) consecutive minutes during the meeting will be noted 
in the minutes as having left the meeting. If a Council member is not 
connected to a Council meeting when a motion is on the floor and voted on, 
the Council member will be recorded as absent in the minutes. 

 
(l) Electronic participants will abide by the rules established by the Council 

procedure bylaw pertaining to electronic meetings. 
 

(2) No more than 3 members of Council at any one time may participate electronically 
at an in person Council meeting under section 6(1)(c); except as per section 6(1)(d). 

 
(3) The Corporate Officer must provide an electronic copy of the Agenda and specific 

information to the members participating electronically.   

PART 3 – DESIGNATION OF MEMBER TO ACT IN PLACE OF MAYOR 
(DEPUTY MAYOR) 

 
7. (1) Annually, before December 31, Council must, from amongst its members, designate 

Council members to serve on a rotating basis, as the Deputy Mayor responsible for 
acting in the place of the Mayor when the Mayor is absent or otherwise unable to act 
or when the office of the Mayor is vacant. 

 
 (2) Each Council member designated under Section 7(1) must fulfill the responsibilities 

of the Mayor in his or her absence. 
 
 (3) If both the Mayor and the Deputy Mayor designated under Section 7(1) are absent 

from the Council meeting, the next designated Council member for the next three 
month period, shall take the Chair and call the meeting to order. 

 
PART 4 – COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS 
 
Attendance of Public at Meetings 
 
8. The Mayor or the Deputy Mayor or the Council member designated as the member 

responsible for acting in the place of the Mayor under Section 7, may expel or exclude a 
person other than a Council member from a Council meeting and: 



Village of Belcarra Council Procedure Bylaw No. 593, 2021 5 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 11 08\5.3 Attachment Bylaw 593, 2021 Council Procedure.doc 

  (a) if the person refuses to leave, the presiding Council member may cause the 
member to be removed by a peace officer; and 

  (b) if the person apologizes to the Council, Council may, by resolution, allow 
the person to return to the place where the Council meeting is being held; 

  (c) if a person is attending a Council meeting electronically, the person will be 
 removed from the meeting.         

  (d) if a person is attending an electronic or hybrid Council meeting, the 
 full name and video of the person must be visible if they wish to address 
 Council.               

 
Minutes of Meetings to be Maintained and Available to the Public 
 
9. Minutes of the proceedings of Council must be: 
 (a) legibly recorded; 
 (b) certified as correct by the Corporate Officer; and 
 (c) signed by the Mayor or other Council member presiding at the Council 

meeting or at the next Council meeting at which the minutes are adopted. 
 
Call Meeting to Order 
 
10. (1) As soon after the time specified for a Council meeting, and a quorum is present, 

the Mayor, if present, must take the Chair and call the Council meeting to order. If 
the Mayor is absent, the Deputy Mayor or the Council member designated as the 
member responsible for acting in the place of the Mayor in accordance with 
Section 7, must take the Chair and call such meeting to order. 

 
 (2) If a quorum of Council is present, but the Mayor or the Deputy Mayor or the 

Council member designated as the member responsible for acting in the place of 
the Mayor under Section 7(1), are not in attendance within 15 minutes of the 
scheduled time for a Council meeting, the Council member designated under 
section 7(3) shall call the meeting to order. 

  
Adjourning Meeting Where No Quorum 
 
11. If there is no quorum of Council present within 15 minutes of the scheduled time for a 

Council meeting, the Corporate Officer must: 
 (a) record the names of the members present, and those absent; and 
 (b) adjourn the meeting until the next scheduled meeting; and 

(c) where technical issues at an electronic or hybrid meeting cause a loss of quorum 
and quorum is not reestablished within 15 minutes, the meeting will be 
rescheduled by the Mayor / Chair and the Corporate Officer. Notice will be given 
per 5 (3) above. 

 
 



Village of Belcarra Council Procedure Bylaw No. 593, 2021 6 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 11 08\5.3 Attachment Bylaw 593, 2021 Council Procedure.doc 

Agenda 
 
12. (1) Prior to each Council meeting, the Corporate Officer must prepare an Agenda 

setting out all the items for consideration at that meeting, providing a short 
summary for each item on the agenda. 

 (2) The deadline for submissions by the public to the Corporate Officer of items for 
inclusion on the Council meeting Agenda, must be no later than 12 noon on the 
Tuesday prior to the Council meeting. 

 
 (3) The deadline for submissions by staff to the Corporate Officer of items for 

inclusion on the Council meeting Agenda, must be no later than 12 noon on the 
Tuesday prior to the meeting. 

 
 (4) The Corporate Officer must make the Agenda available to members of Council by 

the Thursday afternoon prior to the meeting and to the public on the Thursday 
afternoon prior to the meeting. 

 
 (5) Council must not consider any matters not listed on the Agenda unless a new matter 

for consideration is properly introduced as a Late Item pursuant to Section 14. 
 
      (6)  Public Question Period: 
       (a) Public Question Period is not be limited to questions or comments related  
                   to topics on the Council meeting agenda; and 
  (b) Questions from the Council meeting agenda be addressed first, 
        followed by questions on other topics; and 

  (c)  when a Council meeting is held virtually, the full name and video of the    
                       person asking a question must be visible; and 

(d) a maximum of 2 minutes be allowed for each question; and 
(e) a maximum of 20 minutes be allowed for Public Question Period with 

                              completion by 11:00 pm, as pursuant to Section 20. 
(f) The Mayor or the Deputy Mayor or the Council member designated to act in 

place of the Mayor at the Council meeting, be granted the authority to consider if 
a question or comment from a member of the public is appropriate to be raised in 
a Regular Council meeting under the Community Charter, Section 90 (1) and (2). 
Topics such as a matter of litigation, or a personnel matter are topics Council 
must address in a Closed Council meeting and therefore are not able to respond 
to questions on these issues. 

Order of Proceedings and Business 
 
13. (1) The Agenda for all Council meetings outlines the topics listed in Schedule “A” 

(attached to this bylaw), “Order of Council Business” in the order in which the 
topics are listed. 

 
 (2) Particular business at a Council meeting must be taken up in the order in which it 

is listed on the Agenda, unless otherwise resolved by Council. 
   



Village of Belcarra Council Procedure Bylaw No. 593, 2021 7 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 11 08\5.3 Attachment Bylaw 593, 2021 Council Procedure.doc 

Late Item 
 
14. (1) An item of business not included on the Agenda must not be considered at a 

Council meeting unless the introduction of the Late Item is approved by Council at 
the time allocated for Agenda approval. 

 
 (2) If the Council makes a resolution under Section 14(1), information pertaining to 

Late Items must be distributed to Council members. 
 
Voting at Meetings 
 
15. (1) The following procedures apply to voting at Council meetings: 
 (a) when debate on a matter is closed the presiding Council member must put 

the motion to a vote of Council members; 
 (b) when the Council is ready to vote, the presiding Council member must put 

the motion to a vote by stating: 
“Those in favour raise your hands and say aye.”, and then  
“Those opposed raise your hands and say nay.” 

 (c) when the presiding Council member is putting the motion to a vote under  
 paragraphs (a) and (b) a member must not: 

 (i) cross or leave the room, if attending electronically, the Council 
member must be visible; 

 (ii) make a noise or other disturbance; or 
 (iii) interrupt the voting procedure under paragraph (b) unless the 

interrupting Council member is raising a Point of Order. 
 (d) after the presiding Council member puts the motion to a vote under 

paragraph (b), a Council member must not speak to the motion or make a 
motion concerning it; 

 (e) the presiding Council member decision regarding whether a motion has 
been finally put, is conclusive;  

 (f) whenever a vote of Council on a motion is taken, each Council member 
present shall signify their vote by raising their hand; and 

 (g) the presiding Council member must declare the result of the vote by stating 
that the motion is decided in either the affirmative or the negative. 

 
Conduct and Debate 
 
16. (1) A Council member may speak to a question or motion at a Council meeting only if 

that member first addresses the presiding Council member. 
 
 (2) Council members must address the presiding Council member by the title of the 

person such as Mayor, Deputy Mayor, or Councillor. 
 
 (3) Council members must address other non-presiding members by the title Councillor. 
 



Village of Belcarra Council Procedure Bylaw No. 593, 2021 8 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 11 08\5.3 Attachment Bylaw 593, 2021 Council Procedure.doc 

 (4) No Council member must interrupt a Council member who is speaking except to 
raise a Point of Order. 

 
 (5) If more than one Council member speaks the presiding Council member must call 

on the Council member who, in the opinion of the presiding Council member, first 
spoke. 

 
 (6) Council members who are called to order by the presiding Council member: 
 (a) must immediately stop speaking; 
 (b) may explain their position on the Point of Order; and 
 (c) may appeal to Council for its decision on the Point of Order in accordance 

with Section 132 of the Community Charter [Authority of Presiding 
Member]. 

 (7) Council members speaking at a Council meeting: 
 (a) must use respectful language; 
 (b) must not use offensive gestures or signs; 
 (c) must speak only in connection with the matter being debated; 
 (d) may speak about a vote of Council only for the purpose of making a motion 

that the vote be reconsidered; and 
 (e) must adhere to the rules of procedure established under this Bylaw, the 

Community Charter and Robert’s Rules of Order, and to the decisions of 
the presiding Council member and Council in connection with the rules and 
points of order. 

 (8) A member may require that the question being debated at a Council meeting, be 
read at any time during the debate, if that does not interrupt another Council 
member who is speaking. 

 
 (9) The following rules apply to limit speech on matters being considered at a Council 

meeting: 
 (a) a Council member may speak more than once in connection with the same 

question only: 
 (i) with the permission of Council; or 
 (ii) if the Council member is explaining a material part of a previous 

speech without introducing a new matter; 
 (b) a Council member who has made a substantive motion to Council may 

reply to the debate; 
 (c) a Council member who has moved an amendment, the previous question, 

or an instruction to a committee, may not reply to the debate; 
 (d) a Council member may speak to a question, or may speak in reply, for 

longer than a total time of 15 minutes, only with the permission of Council. 
 



Village of Belcarra Council Procedure Bylaw No. 593, 2021 9 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 11 08\5.3 Attachment Bylaw 593, 2021 Council Procedure.doc 

 (10) Robert’s Rules of Order apply to all Council meetings and / or committee 
meetings, unless otherwise provided in, or in conflict with, this bylaw or the 
Community Charter. 

 (11) The following topics will not be permitted for public discussion during a meeting 
and may cause the participant to be expelled from the meeting: 

 (a) any topic not permitted under the Community Charter. 
 (b) any matter pertaining to a bylaw or zoning application that is the subject of 

a public hearing (unless at the public hearing) and has not yet been 
adopted.  

 (c) any matter that is before the courts, has been the subject of a claim for 
damages, or pertains to active requests for proposals. 

 (d) other topics deemed inappropriate, vexatious, frivolous, defamatory in 
nature, or containing abusive language. 

Motions Generally 
 
17. (1) Council may debate and vote on a motion only if it is first made by one Council 

member and then seconded by another. 
 
 (2) A motion that deals with a matter that is not on the Agenda of the Council meeting 

at which the motion is introduced may be introduced with the permission of 
Council. 

 
 (3) Council must vote separately on each distinct part of a question that is under 

consideration at a Council meeting, if a motion by a Council member to Consider 
Seriatim is adopted by Council. 

 
Amendments Generally 
 
18. (1) A Council member may, without notice, move to amend a motion that is being 

considered at a Council meeting. 
 (2) An amendment may propose removing, substituting for, or adding to the words of 

an original motion. 
 (3) A proposed amendment must be decided or withdrawn before the motion being 

considered is put to a vote unless there is a call for the main question. 
 (4) An amendment may be amended once only. 
 (5) An amendment that has been negatived by a vote of Council cannot be proposed 

again. 
 (6) A Council member may propose an amendment to an adopted amendment. 
 
Reconsideration by Mayor or a Council Member 
 
19. (1) Community Charter Section 131 (1) to (4) states in part that the “Mayor may 

require Council reconsideration of a matter”. 



Village of Belcarra Council Procedure Bylaw No. 593, 2021 10 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 11 08\5.3 Attachment Bylaw 593, 2021 Council Procedure.doc 

 (2) Subject to subsection 19 (4), if a motion has been either adopted or defeated during 
a meeting, and at least one member who voted on the winning side wants to have 
the vote reconsidered, a Council member may, at the next Council meeting: 

 (a) move to reconsider a matter on which a vote, other than to postpone 
indefinitely, has been taken; and 

 (b) move to reconsider an adopted Bylaw after an interval of at least 24 hours 
following its adoption. 

 
 (3) A Council member who voted affirmatively for a resolution adopted by Council 

may at any time move to reconsider that resolution. 
 
 (4) Council must not discuss the main motion referred to in subsection (1) unless a 

motion to reconsider that matter is adopted in the affirmative. 
 
 (5) A vote to reconsider must not be reconsidered. 
 
 (6) Council may only reconsider a matter that has not: 
 (a) had the approval or assent of the electors and been adopted; 
 (b) been reconsidered under subsection (1) or Section 131 of the Community 

Charter [mayor may require Council reconsideration of a matter]; 
 (c) been acted on by an officer, employee, or agent of the Village. 
 
 (7) The conditions that applied to the adoption of the original Bylaw, resolution, or 

proceeding apply to its rejection under this Section. 
 
 (8) A Bylaw, resolution, or proceeding that is reaffirmed under subsection (1) or 

Section 131 of the Community Charter [mayor may require Council 
reconsideration of a matter] is as valid and has the same effect as it had before 
reconsideration. 

 
Adjournment 
 
20. A Council may continue a Council meeting after 11:00 pm only by an affirmative vote of 

the Council members present and the time is established for the length of the extension. A 
Council meeting may only be extended once. 

 

PART 5 – BYLAWS 
 
Form of Bylaws 
 
21. A Bylaw introduced at a Council meeting must: 
 (a) be printed; 
 (b) have a distinguishing name; 
 (c) have a distinguishing number; 
 (d) contain an introductory statement of purpose; 
 (e) be divided into Sections. 



Village of Belcarra Council Procedure Bylaw No. 593, 2021 11 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 11 08\5.3 Attachment Bylaw 593, 2021 Council Procedure.doc 

 
Bylaws to be Considered Separately or Jointly 
 
22. Council must consider a proposed Bylaw at a Council meeting either: 
 (a) separately when directed by the presiding Council member or requested by another 

Council member; or 
 (b) jointly with other proposed Bylaws in the sequence determined by the presiding 

Council member. 
 
 
Reading and Adopting Bylaws 
 
23. (1) The readings of the Bylaw may be given by stating its title and object. 
 (2) A proposed Bylaw may be debated and amended at any time during the first three 

readings unless prohibited by the Community Charter. 
 (3) Subject to the Local Government Act, each reading of a proposed Bylaw must 

receive the affirmative vote of a majority of the Council members present. 
 
Bylaws Must Be Signed 
 
24. After a Bylaw is adopted, and signed by the Corporate Officer and the presiding Council 

member of the Council meeting at which it was adopted, the Corporate Officer must have 
it placed in the Village records for safekeeping. 

 
PART 6 – RESOLUTIONS 
 
Introducing Resolutions 
 
25. (1) The presiding Council member of a Council meeting may request a motion that a 

resolution be introduced. 
 
PART 7 – COMMITTEES 
 
Duties of Standing Committees 
 
26. (1) Standing committees must consider, inquire into, report, and make 

recommendations to Council about all of the following matters: 
 (a) matters that are related to the general subject indicated by the name of the 

committee; 
 (b) matters that are assigned or delegated by Council; 
 (c) matters that are assigned by the Mayor. 
 
 (2) Standing committees must report and make recommendations to Council at all of 

the following times: 
 (a) in accordance with the committee meetings schedule or as required: 
 (b) on matters that are assigned by Council or the Mayor at the time specified. 
 



Village of Belcarra Council Procedure Bylaw No. 593, 2021 12 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 11 08\5.3 Attachment Bylaw 593, 2021 Council Procedure.doc 

Duties of Select Committees 
 
27. (1) Select committees must consider, inquire into, report, and make recommendations 

to Council about the matters referred to the committee by the Council. 
 (2) Select committees must report and make recommendations to Council at the next 

Council meeting unless Council specifies a different date and time. 
 
 
 
 
Schedule of Committee Meetings 
 
28. (1) At its first meeting after its establishment, a standing or select committee must 

establish a regular schedule of meetings. 
 (2) The Chair of a committee may call a meeting of the committee in addition to the 

scheduled meetings or may cancel a meeting. 
 
Notice of Committee Meetings 
 
29. (1) Subject to subsection (2), after the committee has established the regular schedule 

of committee meetings, including the times, dates and places of the committee 
meetings, notice of the schedule must be given by: 

 (a) posting a copy of the schedule at the Public Notice Posting Place, or 
optionally, the Village website; and 

 (b) providing a copy of the schedule to each member of the committee. 
 
 (2) Where revisions are necessary to the annual schedule of committee meetings, the 

Staff Resource person must, as soon as possible, Corporate Officer who will post a 
notice at the Public Notice Posting Place, or optionally, the Village website which 
indicates any revisions to the date, time and place or cancellation of a committee 
meeting. 

 
 (3) The staff resource person to a committee must cause a notice of the day, time and 

place of a meeting called under Section 30(2) to be given to all members of the 
committee before the time of the meeting. 

 
Attendance at Committee Meetings 
 
30. Council members who are not members of a committee may attend the meetings of the 

committee. 
 
Minutes of Committee Meetings to be Maintained and Available to Public 
 
31. Minutes of the proceedings of a committee must be: 
 (a) legibly recorded; 
 (b) certified by the Department Head or designate who is assigned as staff resource to 

the Committee; 
 (c) signed by the Chair or member presiding at the meeting; and 



Village of Belcarra Council Procedure Bylaw No. 593, 2021 13 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 11 08\5.3 Attachment Bylaw 593, 2021 Council Procedure.doc 

 (d) filed with the Corporate Officer and be open for public inspection.. 
 
Conduct and Debate 
 
32. (1) The rules of the Council procedure must be observed during committee meetings, 

so far as is possible and unless as otherwise provided in this Bylaw. 
 
 (2) Council members attending a meeting of a committee, of which they are not a 

member, may participate in the discussion only with the permission of the 
committee members present. 

 (3) As per the Community Charter, the Chair must preserve order. If the Chair 
considers that another person at the meeting is acting improperly or disrupting the 
meeting, the behaviour of that person will be addressed. The Chair may order the 
person expelled from the meeting should the person choose to not adhere to the 
decisions of the Chair. 

 
Voting at Meetings 
 
33. Council members attending a meeting of a committee of which they are not a member 

must not vote on a question. 
 
PART 8 – ANNUAL REPORT 
 
Annual Report 
 
34. The Corporate Officer must give notice of the Council meeting or other public meeting in 

respect of which Council has resolved to consider: 

 (1) the Annual Report prepared under Section 98 of the Community Charter, and 

 (2) submissions and questions from the public, 

 by giving public notice by: 

 (3) posting notice of the date, time and place when the Annual Report will be 
considered, in the posting locations, and 

 (4) publishing notice of the date, time and place of the consideration of the Annual 
Report in accordance with Section 94 of the Community Charter. 

 
PART 8 - GENERAL 
 
35. If any Section, subsection or clause of this Bylaw is for any reason held to be invalid by 

the decision of a court of competent jurisdiction, such decision will not affect the validity 
of the remaining portions of this Bylaw. 

 
36. This Bylaw may not be amended or repealed and substituted unless Council first gives 

notice in accordance with Section 94 of the Community Charter [public notice]. 
 
37. Village of Belcarra Procedure Bylaw No. 356, 2004 as amended is repealed. 



Village of Belcarra Council Procedure Bylaw No. 593, 2021 14 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 11 08\5.3 Attachment Bylaw 593, 2021 Council Procedure.doc 

 
 
 
Public Notice given on 
 
Read a First time on 
 
Read a Second time on 
 
Read a Third time on 
 
Adopted by the Council on 
 
 
 
    
Jamie Ross  Lorna Dysart 
Mayor  Chief Administrative Officer 
   
 
This is a certified a true copy of 
Village of Belcarra Council Procedure  
Bylaw No. 593, 2021 

 
______________________________ 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Village of Belcarra Council Procedure Bylaw No. 593, 2021 15 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 11 08\5.3 Attachment Bylaw 593, 2021 Council Procedure.doc 

 
 
 

Schedule “A” 
 

Order Of Business at Regular Council Meetings 
 

Unless the Council otherwise resolves, Council shall deal with business at every regular 
meeting in the following order: 
 

(a) Call to Order; 
(b) Approval of the agenda; 
(c) Adoption of the minutes; 
(d) Delegations and Presentations; 
(e) Reports; 
(f) Reports from Mayor and Council Committee Representatives; 
(g) Report from the Chief Administrative Officer; 
(h) Bylaws: 
(i) Correspondence/Proclamations; 
(j) New Business; 
(k) Public Question Period; 
(l) Adjournment. 

 
 



J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 11 08\5.4 10 11 08 L. Dysart - Midden Road 
Closure.doc 

  
COUNCIL REPORT 

  
Date: November 8, 2021 
 
From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer  
 
Subject: Update on the Midden Road Closure 
 
 
Recommendation  
That the report dated November 8, 2021, regarding the Update on the Midden Road Closure be 
received for information.   
 
Purpose 
The purpose of this report is to provide Council with the background regarding the Midden Road 
closure at Bedwell Bay Road.  
Background 
At a Regular Council meeting held May 13, 2019, the follow motion was passed: 

“That Council approve the temporary closure of Midden Road at Bedwell Bay Road; 
and 
That the Temporary Closure remain in place until October 1, 2019 
That Council direct staff to advise TransLink, all Emergency Services and residents.” 

 
Following the Midden Road closure, the TransLink bus stop was moved farther down the road.   

 
At a Regular Council meeting held June 24, 2019, the following motion was passed: 

“That Council approve the installation of 18 meters of new standard roadside barriers at a 
cost of $3,500. for the closure to traffic on Midden Road at Bedwell Bay Road.” 

In the staff report to Council on June 24, 2019, it was noted that the 2017 Road Assessment 
Management report indicated that the Midden was one of the top three Belcarra roads in need of 
repair.  There was $60,000. set aside in the 2019 budget for the repair of Midden Road.  This repair 
did not occur.   
Midden Road is not part of the MRN road network.   
 
 
 
 
 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.4



J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 11 08\5.6 2021 11 08 S Novak, Invasive Species 
Report.doc 

  
COUNCIL REPORT 

 
Date: November 8, 2021 
 
From: Stewart Novak, Public Works and Emergency Preparedness Coordinator 
 
Subject: Invasive Plant Management 2021 Report - Invasive Species Council of          

Metro Vancouver  
 
 
Recommendation 

That the report dated November 8, 2021, regarding the “Invasive Plant Management 2021” from 
the Invasive Species Council of Metro Vancouver be received for information. 

Purpose 

The purpose is to provide Council with a report on the work completed by the Invasive Species 
Council of Metro Vancouver. 
 
Background  

As part of the effort to control and eradicate invasive vegetation in the Village, staff contracts with 
the Invasive Species Council of Metro Vancouver (ISCMV) to monitor and control. 
 
 
Attachment: ISCMV Village of Belcarra Invasive Plant Management 2021 Report. 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.5



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Village of Belcarra 

Invasive Plant Management 

2021 

 
  Submitted to: Lorna Dysart, Village of Belcarra  

   604 937 4101 | ldysart@belcarra.ca 

 

   Stewart Novak, Village of Belcarra 

   604 937 4100 | snovak@belcarra.ca  

 

  Submitted by: Larissa Lau, Invasive Species Council of Metro Vancouver  

   604 880 8358 | llau@iscmv.ca  

  

 

  

mailto:snovak@belcarra.ca
mailto:llau@iscmv.ca
prichardson
Typewritten Text
Attachment



Village of Belcarra Invasive Plant Management 2021   Page 2 of 5 

1.0 Introduction 
The Invasive Species Council of Metro Vancouver (ISCMV) was contracted to conduct invasive plant 

control and monitoring activities for the Village of Belcarra on municipal property during 2021. The 

ISCMV followed up on treatment sites from previous years. 

 

During the 2021 field season the ISCMV conducted two treatment and monitoring sessions. The first 

treatments were conducted on July 15 (Figure 1), and second treatments were conducted on August 

31 (Figure 2). Treatments were conducted under the ISCMV Pesticide Use License #18943. The ISCMV 

will submit the required pesticide use information for work conducted on Belcarra lands in our annual 

report to BC Ministry of Environment. The ISCMV follows all required regulations and the guidance 

provided for invasive plant management on provincial public lands as outlined in the Invasive Plant 

Pest Management Plan for Provincial Crown Lands in the South Coastal Region of British Columbia 

(PMP).  

 

Figure 1. Location of first treatment and monitoring sites conducted on July 15, 2021 on the Village of 

Belcarra municipal property.  

 

https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/environment/plants-animals-and-ecosystems/invasive-species/pest-management/south_coastal_mainland_pmp_2016_update_2020.pdf
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/environment/plants-animals-and-ecosystems/invasive-species/pest-management/south_coastal_mainland_pmp_2016_update_2020.pdf
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/environment/plants-animals-and-ecosystems/invasive-species/pest-management/south_coastal_mainland_pmp_2016_update_2020.pdf


Village of Belcarra Invasive Plant Management 2021   Page 3 of 5 

Figure 2. Location of second treatment and monitoring sites conducted on August 31, 2021 on the 

Village of Belcarra municipal property.  

 

 

2.0 Methods 
2.1 Chemical Control Methods 
Control of knotweed species was conducted using chemical control via direct foliar through the use of 

a hand sprayer. The herbicide used for control work was VP480 (formerly Vantage XRT), a non-

selective herbicide with active ingredient glyphosate @ 480 g active ingredient/L.  

 

Decisions on treatment methods were based on a number of factors that included, but not limited to:  

• ecology of surrounding area 

• invasive plant’s stage of growth  

• plant physiology  

• weather  

• proximity to water and the public 

• public perception 

• presence of native species 

• age of infestation 

• economic efficiency 

• assessment of the seed bed 

• time of year 

• applicable regulations 

 



Village of Belcarra Invasive Plant Management 2021   Page 4 of 5 

2.2 Monitoring Methods 
ISCMV monitored treatment sites throughout the 2021 field season. Data collection for control and 

monitoring work was conducted in accordance with guidelines set out by the Invasive Alien Plant 

Program (IAPP) Application administered by the BC Ministry of Forests, Lands, Natural Resource 

Operations and Rural Development. Data is stored in the ISCMV files and in IAPP. Data on herbicide 

treatment and use, weather conditions, area covered by invasive plant, date/time, coordinates and 

IAPP site number were recorded using an iPad. Photos of the sites were also taken both during 

treatment and site follow up.  

 

3.0 Results 
There was an increase in knotweed sites compared to previous years. Although in 2020 many sites 

showed high efficacy, the knotweed infestations have persisted and required chemical treatment in 

2021. Table 1 below shows the comparison between the 2019, 2020 and 2021 treatment and 

monitoring sites of knotweed. Based on first treatments conducted on July 2021, the total area 

chemically treated was 120 m2 across 7 knotweed sites. The increase of knotweed treated is attributed 

to two individual knotweed patches; IAPP site 301666 and a new site. Neither of these infestations 

were treated in the two previous years as they since they were not identified. 

 

During the second treatment visit on August 31, four sites were chemically treated and 5m2 of 

knotweed was treated. There was a decrease of the number of sites treated from first to second 

treatment due to the high efficacy of the first treatments. 

 

Table 1. Comparison of the number of monitor and treatment sites and the area treated over the 
2019, 2020 and 2021 field season, by first and second treatments.  

 2019 1st Treatment 2020 1st Treatment 2021 1st Treatment  

# of monitoring sites 12 18 22 

# of treatment sites  12 6 7 

Treatment area (m2) 62 82 120 

 

 2019 2nd Treatment 2020 2nd Treatment 2021 2nd Treatment  

# of monitoring sites 16 23 11 

# of treatment sites  8 0 4 

Treatment area (m2) 38 0 5 

 

Raw data in csv, KML and shapefile formats can be supplied upon request. 

 

https://www2.gov.bc.ca/gov/content/environment/plants-animals-ecosystems/invasive-species/iapp
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/gov/content/environment/plants-animals-ecosystems/invasive-species/iapp


Village of Belcarra Invasive Plant Management 2021   Page 5 of 5 

4.0 Recommendations 
Monitoring should be completed on all invasive species sites during the 2022 field season to ensure 

that if these invasive species return, they are re-treated as soon as possible. Monitoring of knotweed 

species can begin in late April and early May. Sites found with re-growth should be retreated to 

maximize long-term efficacy. It is crucial to continue monitoring of the previously treated sites for 3-5 

years to ensure the infestation is eradicated. 

 

Residents should be encouraged to report knotweed sites on municipal property so that no knotweed 

patches are missed and go untreated. Residents should also be encouraged to manage knotweed 

found on their own properties. There are regional resources to support residential property owners 

working on invasive species management. 

 



  
COUNCIL REPORT 

   
Date: November 8, 2021  
 
From: Councillor Drake  
 
Subject: Water Committee Recommendations 
 
 
Whereas the Water Committee has thoroughly studied the Village water system, the 
documentation and management of the system and provided many suggestions; therefore, be it 
resolved: 
 
Recommendation A: 
That Council thank the Water Committee members for all their work; welcome future input from 
Committee members as individuals and declare the work of the Water Committee completed.  
Recommendation B: 
That Council approve the Water System motions below #1 to #32. 
Purpose / Background 
Introduction:  
 
After consultation with the Water Committee Chair, Ian Devlin, a few modifications have been 
made to the motions. The reporting of status on those steps approved by Council is now specified 
as to be in writing and scheduled monthly.    
 
Most motions outlined below were included in the Water Committee Technical Report #2 and 
are subject to the disposition of Council.   
 
Water System Recommendation B: 
 
1. That each of the following list of recommendations derived primarily from the Water 

Committee Technical Brief Report #2 dated September 26, 2021 be approved; amended and 
approved; deferred for subsequent discussion or not approved.   

 
2. That, unless otherwise specified, recommendations be referred to staff for action and  
 
3. That the motions approved be retained and that staff advise Council as progress is made on 

the motions adopted which would include such matters as projected completion dates and 
completed status. 

 
4.   That a written report on progress be provided at the first Council meeting of each month.  
 
 
 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
6.2



Councillor Drake 
Council Report: Water Committee Recommendations 
November 8, 2021 
Page 2 of 4 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 11 08\2021 11 08 Councillor Drake, Water Committee 
Recommendations.docx 

5. [1(a)] *1That staff prepare and maintain an up-to-date Water System Operation and   
         Maintenance Manual (OMM); and 

 
6. [1(b)]   That staff prepare and maintain an up-to-date SCADA manual;  
 
7. [1(c)]   That Council recognize that the Belcarra water system is dual-purpose - intended  

 both to provide potable water in accordance with applicable regulations and to  
 support fire fighting.  

 
8. [1(d)]   That the OMM and the procedures outlined reflect and support the dual-purpose    

 nature of its water system ensuring water quality while optimizing firefighting  
 capacity subject to that water quality assurance 

 
9. [2(a)]   That the OMM framework prepared by Ralph Drew be adopted and that detailed    

   material, as completed, be inserted into this framework, as required.  
 
10. [2(a.1)] That the detailed operating procedure pertaining to the triggering of Tatlow inflow  

 upon SVFD fire callout and the advising of DNV of any substantial structural fire  
 be included in the manual. 

 
11. [2(b)]    That as sections of the OMM are completed, the sections be presented to Council.  
 
12. [3(a)]     That in response to the 2019 recommendation from Fraser Health, (*2), a report be  

         presented to council on the feasibility and cost of adding chlorination capacity to  
   our system. 
 
13. [3(b)]    That tracking of the ongoing chlorine & water sampling monitoring program            

         through Metro Vancouver and ongoing documentation be described in the OMM.  
 
14 [4(a)]      That a complete set of water system drawings (including engineering drawings for  
         both Tatlow and the Dutchman Creek reservoirs ) be included in the OMM or  
         referenced and readily accessible  
 
15. [5(a)]     That Village wide meter readings be used to provide a report to Council estimating  

  domestic consumption and comparing the consumption to measured inflow. 
 
16. [6(a)]  That results of the 2022 inspections of both the Tatlow & Dutchman Creek 

 reservoirs be reported to Council and include assessments of the life expectancy of 
 the reservoirs, as well as information for use in long term capital planning.  

 
       [7]         That WSP engineers report the following to Council:  
 
17.  [7(a)]  That the potential for and high level costs of increased inflow from DNV be 

 discussed considering:  
 

18.  [7(a.1)]   a modest increase with modest impact and costs and 
 



Councillor Drake 
Council Report: Water Committee Recommendations 
November 8, 2021 
Page 3 of 4 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 11 08\2021 11 08 Councillor Drake, Water Committee 
Recommendations.docx 

19.  [7(a.2)]   a more ambitious option which may be dependent on a number of factors including  
          funding (grant) assistance. 

 
20. [7(b)]       a review and upgrade of the SCADA system  
 
21. [7(c)]       a report on the apparent discrepancy between DNV metering of water provided to  
                      the Village and the Village metering of received water 
 
22. [7(d)]       should a discrepancy be found per 7(c) above, either resolve the matter or suggest  

           and cost estimate potential solutions.  
 
23. [7(e)]       report on the capacity of the twin lines that cross under Indian Arm connecting the  

           District of North Vancouver water system to the Village water system while  
           assuming a credible range of flow rates  

 
       [8]          That the Master Capital Asset Management Plan being prepared for the Village: 
 
24. [8(a)]       include the water system and all components  
 
25. [8(b)]       include a multiyear financial plan for the water system.   
 
       [9]          That, as part of mitigation strategies, Council consider: 
 
26. [9(a)]       Fire Smart practices  
 
27. [9(b)]       Sprinkler bylaws - Council assess the benefits of seeking mandatory sprinkler    

           authority; the cost and probability of success in addition to the impact in terms of  
           sprinkler installations and decide whether to pursue this authority. 

 
28. [9(c)]       If council decides to not seek approval to mandate sprinklers, that the Village  

           prepare an information sheet for homeowners explaining local firefighting   
           challenges, particularly for larger homes, and recommending sprinkler installations.  

 
29. [9(d)]      That Council approve offering further information to residents about the benefits of 

           other mitigating steps such as monitored and/or modern alarm systems.  
 
30. [9(e)]       That Council consider the recommendations of the Tree Committee related to fire  

            risk reduction. 
 
31. [9(f)]  That the reduction and mitigation strategies suggested by B.A. Blackwell and  

  Associates be considered as outlined in the Community Wildfire Resilience Plan  
  presented to Council September 26, 2021. 

 
32. [10(a)]  sprinklers - see 9b & 9c above  
 
 
 



Councillor Drake 
Council Report: Water Committee Recommendations 
November 8, 2021 
Page 4 of 4 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 11 08\2021 11 08 Councillor Drake, Water Committee 
Recommendations.docx 

Notes:  
*1 – figures in [ ] brackets largely reference the Belcarra Water Committee - Technical Brief #2        

dated September 26, 2021 prepared by Committee Chair, Ian Devlin. 
*2 -July 19, 2021 letter from Fraser Health 
 
Abbreviations:  
OMM - Operating and Maintenance Manual 
SCADA - Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 11 08\7.1 VOB Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018 
Amendment Bylaw No. 590, 2021, .docx 

 
 

 

 
An amendment bylaw to introduce a Development Enquiry Research Fee for complex enquiries.  

 
WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time to time; 

NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra Council enacts as follows: 

1. That this bylaw be cited for all purposes as the "Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw 
No. 517, 2018 Amendment Bylaw No. 590, 2021”. 
 

2. That the “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018” be amended: 
a) By adding the following to the table under Schedule 8 – Planning, Land and 

Development Services:  
 

[Description] [Fee] 
Development Enquiry Research Fee/Pre-
Application Fee for Review of Large Rezoning 
Applications - Where it is determined by the 
Chief Administrative Officer (CAO) that research 
may involve staff time in excess of 15 minutes. 
 
Where it is determined that a fee may be assessed, 
the applicant will be provided with a fee estimate 
prior to the requested work being initiated.  

First hour - $100 
Each additional 15mins or portion thereof $20 
 
 

 
Read a First Time on October 12, 2021 

Read a Second Time on October 25, 2021 

Read a Third Time on  
 

ADOPTED by Council on  
 
 
   
Jamie Ross 
Mayor 

 Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
This is a certified a true copy of 
Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018 
Amendment Bylaw No. 590, 2021 
 
 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
 
 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018,  

Amendment Bylaw No. 590, 2021 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
7.1



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.1







prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.2



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.3





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.4



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.5





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.6


	That Council Procedure Bylaw No. 593, 2021 be read a first and second time.
	That the report dated November 8, 2021, regarding the Update on the Midden  Road Closure be received for information.
	That the report dated November 8, 2021, regarding the “Invasive Plant        Management 2021” from the Invasive Species Council of Metro Vancouver be    received for information.
	3.1 2021 10 25 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.pdf
	“Water Operating Fund
	 Projected water usage in line with 2021 & 2019 not the larger increase in water  usage that occurred in 2022.”  (2022 should be 2020)
	Council discussed various aspects of the report. The Draft 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan report will be brought forward for Public Consultation at the Council meeting scheduled for November 8, 2021.
	5.2 Stewart Novak, Public Works and Emergency Preparedness Coordinator, report      dated October 25, 2021 regarding UBCM Grant Application for Community Resiliency  Investment Funding
	S. Novak outlined the report. Council asked pertinent questions with regard to the  report. The area for prescription development was noted. Discussion ensued.
	Moved by:   Councillor Clark
	That Council approve an application for 2022 UBCM Community Resiliency  Investment Grant Funding in the amount of $49,836; and
	That Council confirm its willingness to provide grant management should funding  be  approved.
	Mayor’s Reports
	Certified Correct:

	5.1 2021-11-08 Draft 2022-2026 Financial Plan final.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date: November 8, 2021
	From: Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant
	Subject: Draft 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan
	Recommendation
	That the report entitled “Draft 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan” from the Financial Consultant dated November 8, 2021 be received for information.
	Purpose
	The purpose of this report is to present the Village of Belcarra’s Draft 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan (see attached) (represents Scenario “A”) as well as two other financial scenarios (Scenario “B” and Scenario “C”) to Council and for Public Consultatio...
	Background
	This report has been forwarded from the October 25, 2021 Council meeting wherein Council made the following motion:
	“That the report entitled “Draft 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan” be considered at the Public Budget Presentation on November 8, 2021.”
	After the November 8, 2021 Public Budget presentation, the approved budget schedule calls for the financial plan/budget to next be considered at the regular Council meeting on November 22, 2021 at which time Council is scheduled to provide final appro...
	Report
	Scenarios
	The following financial plan scenarios which are included in this report have been developed for public feedback purposes:
	Strategic Plan
	From a big picture point of view, Council’s financial plan prioritizes and allocates resources that will result in the realization of Council’s strategic priorities. In this regard, Council’s recently adopted strategic priorities, which are iterated b...
	Projected 2021 Year-End Financial Results
	The Village’s expected 2021 year-end financial results, in comparison to budget, are shown in the Financial Plan Document. As per Council policy, a 2021 budget variance analysis is to be presented to Council for the 3rd quarter ending September 30th, ...
	One of the main contributing factors that will impact the final year-end results for 2021 is the amount of COVID-19 Restart Grant funds (Grant) that will be utilized to offset 2021 COVID related impacts such as emergency supplies, staff time spent on ...
	Draft 2022 - 2026 Financial Plan Scenarios & Major Impacts
	Three 2022 – 2026 financial plan scenarios, with various property tax and user rate increases, are summarized in Table 2 below. Scenario “A” (the base scenario), which is reflected in the attached Financial Plan Document, provides for 7% per annum inc...
	In 2022, for each 1% increase in property taxes additional revenue of $9,100 is generated and for each 1% increase in water and WARD user rates, $3,100 and $1,350 respectively, are generated.  The main factors and assumptions affecting the Village’s t...
	General Operating Fund
	 Inflationary increases provided for most expenditure line items
	 Increased support for planning, legal and information technology (IT)
	 Centralized support cost recovery for indirect costs increased from 50% to 75% in 2022, and to 100% in 2023 and beyond, based on approved policy
	 Dedicated funding for completion of the OCP Review & Update (funded from Community Works Fund) and the Asset Management/Long-Term Financial Plan (funded from Community Works Fund & FCM grant) projects which both started in 2021
	 Funding for ongoing asset management program from 2022 – 2024 ($30,000 per year) and for an election to be held in 2022 ($24,402)
	Water Operating Fund
	 Inflationary increases provided for most expenditure line items
	 Increase in water rates from Metro Vancouver based on 4.1% in 2022, 6.1% in 2023, 10.6% in 2024, 11.7% in 2025 & 11.5% in 2026
	 Projected water usage in line with 2021 & 2019 not the larger increase in water usage that occurred in 2020.
	 Centralized support cost charges for indirect costs increased from 50% to 75% in 2022 and to 100% in 2023 and beyond based on approved policy
	WARD Operating Fund
	 Inflationary increases provided for most expenditure line items
	 Centralized support cost charges for indirect costs increased from 50% to 75% in 2022 and to 100% in 2023 and beyond based on Policy
	 Reduced cost of pick-up and disposal of waste, recyclables and organics based on updated agreement with contractor
	Canada Community-Building Fund
	The Government of Canada has renamed the Gas Tax Fund the “Canada Community-Building Fund”, which recognizes that the fund is no longer associated with gas tax revenues. Under this program the Village receives annual Community Works Fund payments. In ...
	“The 10-year Gas Tax Fund is currently set to expire in March, 2024. At this time, there is a considerable amount of unspent funds in local government Gas Tax Fund accounts. In the coming months, UBCM will be in contact with local governments holding ...
	In light of the above, the Village’s Draft 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan allocates Community Works Funds dollars for a number of eligible projects. After this spending there is still projected to be approximately $300,000 of left over in the Community Wo...
	Taxes and User Rates on Average Value Home
	The increases in property taxes, user rates and the parcel tax for an average value home in Belcarra, based on the various scenarios, are shown below. This information is provided for discussion purposes.
	Attachment:
	 Appendix “A” - Draft 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan (or Financial Plan Document)

	5.1 Appendix A - Draft 2022-2026 Financial Plan document.pdf
	Summary
	Introduction & Overview
	General Operating Fund
	Water Operating Fund
	Waste & Recycle Depot (WARD) Operating Fund
	Capital Plan
	Reserves & Surpluses
	Property Taxes & User Fees

	General Operating Fund Details
	Water Fund Debt
	Waste & Recycle Depot (WARD) Operating Fund Details
	Projected Reserve & Surplus Balances
	Comparative Benchmarks

	5.2 2021 11 08 Council Meeting Schedule 2022.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date: November 8, 2021
	From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer
	Subject: 2022 Council Meeting Schedule
	Recommendation
	Background
	The Council Meeting Schedule is set annually and posted on the Belcarra Municipal Website and the official Notice Board.  The meeting schedule includes the following information:
	 All Regular Council Meetings;
	 The Deputy Mayor Schedule;
	 Municipal Election & Inaugural Meeting;
	 Major Conferences
	In the proposed 2022 Council Meeting Schedule, Regular Council Meetings are held as per the attached calendar.
	 In August, no meetings are held;
	 In December, one meeting is held.
	Attachment
	(1)  2022 Council Meeting Calendar

	5.2 Attachment 2022 Council Meeting CALENDAR.pdf
	September up to & including October 14, 2022    Councillor John Snell

	5.3 2021 11 08 L. Dysart - Council Procedure Bylaw 593, 2021.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date: November 8, 2021
	From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer
	Subject: Council Procedure Bylaw No. 593, 2021
	Recommendation
	That Council Procedure Bylaw No. 593, 2021 be read a first and second time.
	Purpose
	The purpose of this report is to bring forward a new Council Procedure Bylaw which will provide the option to conduct Council meeting and Committee meetings in person or via electronic participation.
	Background
	On March 13, 2020, a public state of emergency was declared to support the BC province wide response to the Covid-19 pandemic.  During that time, the Province issued several orders to assist local governments to continue their operations, including Or...
	Belcarra Council Procedure Bylaw No. 356, 2004 has received 6 amendments.  It was deemed appropriate for staff to bring forward a new Council Procedure Bylaw to cover the way in which Council meetings may now be conducted.  The only changes to Council...
	During the Covid-19 Pandemic, work was undertaken to have new electronic equipment installed in the Village Hall.  The new equipment empowers Council and staff to be able to conduct hybrid Council meetings.  That means that Council members, certain st...
	When it will be safe to hold in person Council meetings, use of the new electronic equipment will commence.  At that time, consideration of an additional staff member to assist with the use of the electronic equipment will be determined.
	It is recommended that Council give three readings to the Council Procedure Bylaw in this meeting and / or provide for adoption, as it is important that the Village complies with the Provincial legislation.

	5.3 Attachment Bylaw 593, 2021 Council Procedure.pdf
	PART 1 – INTRODUCTION
	Definitions
	PART 2 – COUNCIL MEETINGS

	(b) The Chair and Corporate Officer will determine if a council meeting will be held electronically; in person or in a hybrid manner.
	(c) a member of Council or a Council committee, who is unable to attend a Council meeting or a Council committee meeting in person, may participate in the meeting by means of electronic or other communication facilities.
	PART 3 – DESIGNATION OF MEMBER TO ACT IN PLACE OF MAYOR (DEPUTY MAYOR)
	PART 4 – COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS
	Attendance of Public at Meetings
	Minutes of Meetings to be Maintained and Available to the Public
	Call Meeting to Order
	Adjourning Meeting Where No Quorum
	Agenda
	Order of Proceedings and Business
	Late Item
	Voting at Meetings
	Conduct and Debate
	Motions Generally
	Amendments Generally
	Reconsideration by Mayor or a Council Member
	Adjournment
	PART 5 – BYLAWS


	Form of Bylaws
	Bylaws to be Considered Separately or Jointly
	Reading and Adopting Bylaws
	Bylaws Must Be Signed
	PART 6 – RESOLUTIONS


	Introducing Resolutions
	PART 7 – COMMITTEES
	Duties of Standing Committees
	Duties of Select Committees

	Schedule of Committee Meetings
	Notice of Committee Meetings
	Attendance at Committee Meetings
	Minutes of Committee Meetings to be Maintained and Available to Public
	Conduct and Debate
	Voting at Meetings
	PART 8 – ANNUAL REPORT

	Annual Report
	PART 8 - GENERAL



	5.4 10 11 08 L. Dysart - Midden Road Closure.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date: November 8, 2021
	From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer
	Subject: Update on the Midden Road Closure
	Recommendation
	That the report dated November 8, 2021, regarding the Update on the Midden Road Closure be received for information.
	Purpose
	The purpose of this report is to provide Council with the background regarding the Midden Road closure at Bedwell Bay Road.
	Background
	At a Regular Council meeting held May 13, 2019, the follow motion was passed:
	“That Council approve the temporary closure of Midden Road at Bedwell Bay Road; and
	That the Temporary Closure remain in place until October 1, 2019
	That Council direct staff to advise TransLink, all Emergency Services and residents.”
	Following the Midden Road closure, the TransLink bus stop was moved farther down the road.
	At a Regular Council meeting held June 24, 2019, the following motion was passed:
	“That Council approve the installation of 18 meters of new standard roadside barriers at a cost of $3,500. for the closure to traffic on Midden Road at Bedwell Bay Road.”
	In the staff report to Council on June 24, 2019, it was noted that the 2017 Road Assessment Management report indicated that the Midden was one of the top three Belcarra roads in need of repair.  There was $60,000. set aside in the 2019 budget for the...
	Midden Road is not part of the MRN road network.

	5.5 2021 11 08 S Novak, Invasive Species Report.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date: November 8, 2021
	From: Stewart Novak, Public Works and Emergency Preparedness Coordinator
	Subject: Invasive Plant Management 2021 Report - Invasive Species Council of          Metro Vancouver
	Recommendation
	That the report dated November 8, 2021, regarding the “Invasive Plant Management 2021” from the Invasive Species Council of Metro Vancouver be received for information.
	Purpose
	The purpose is to provide Council with a report on the work completed by the Invasive Species Council of Metro Vancouver.
	Background
	As part of the effort to control and eradicate invasive vegetation in the Village, staff contracts with the Invasive Species Council of Metro Vancouver (ISCMV) to monitor and control.
	Attachment: ISCMV Village of Belcarra Invasive Plant Management 2021 Report.

	6.2 2021 11 08 Councillor Drake, Water Committee Recommendations.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date: November 8, 2021
	From: Councillor Drake
	Subject: Water Committee Recommendations
	Recommendation A:
	Recommendation B:
	That Council approve the Water System motions below #1 to #32.
	Purpose / Background

	7.1 VOB Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018 Amendment Bylaw No. 590, 2021, .pdf
	An amendment bylaw to introduce a Development Enquiry Research Fee for complex enquiries.
	WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time to time;
	NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra Council enacts as follows:
	2. That the “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018” be amended:
	Read a First Time on October 12, 2021
	Read a Second Time on October 25, 2021
	Read a Third Time on
	ADOPTED by Council on
	This is a certified a true copy of Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018 Amendment Bylaw No. 590, 2021

	2.1 2021 11 08 Regular Council Agenda.pdf
	That Council Procedure Bylaw No. 593, 2021 be read a first and second time.
	That the report dated November 8, 2021, regarding the Update on the Midden  Road Closure be received for information.
	That the report dated November 8, 2021, regarding the “Invasive Plant        Management 2021” from the Invasive Species Council of Metro Vancouver be    received for information.

	2.1 2021 11 08 Regular Council Agenda.pdf
	That Council Procedure Bylaw No. 593, 2021 be read a first and second time.
	That the report dated November 8, 2021, regarding the Update on the Midden  Road Closure be received for information.
	That the report dated November 8, 2021, regarding the “Invasive Plant        Management 2021” from the Invasive Species Council of Metro Vancouver be    received for information.




